
July 19, 2010 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Bain, Bertuleit, Kilbride, McConnell, 
Patrick, Brusselback, and Obteshka were present. 
 Staff present was City Manager Voetberg, City Recorder Hawker, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Public Works Director Ritzman, Finance Director Marshall, 
Parks and Recreation Director Protiva, and Police Chief Miranda. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 Brad Nudd, representing the Committee of Eight, addressed Council regarding the 
sinking of the Mary Rose and the anchor, and the anchor purported to have been used 
by Captain Cook on the HMS Discovery.  
 Dave Morgan reported that the Council Chamber audio distortion is caused by ATT 
cell phones, and stated that these phones must be turned off, rather than silenced, to 
prevent this problem. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
 Bain proclaimed July 26, 2010 as a day of commemoration of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 

A. Approval of minutes from the City Council work session and regular meeting of 
July 6, 2010; 

 B. OLCC liquor license application for Panache for full on-premises sales license; 
C. OLCC liquor license application for Yummy Bowl for limited on-premises sales 

and change of ownership; 
D. OLCC liquor license application for Ocean Bleu Seafoods, dba Gino’s Fish 

Market and Café, for limited on-premises sales and new outlet; 
 E. Fire Department monthly report for June 2010; 
 F. Police Department monthly report for June 2010. 
 
 MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by Patrick, to include the June 2010 
claims in the consent calendar. The motion carried unanimously, and the consent 
calendar was amended. MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by Brusselback, 
to adopt the consent calendar as amended. The motion carried unanimously in a voice 
vote. 
 



COUNCILOR’S REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Kilbride reported on the recent meeting with the NOAA families in Seattle. He noted 
that the presentations went well, and that attendees were appreciative of the session. 
He stated that NOAA has an officer corps and civilian employees, and that the officer 
corps is supportive of the move to Newport, while the civilian employees are not all 
enthusiastic. He added that the lack of enthusiasm is related to spouses giving up jobs 
and possibly not being able to find local jobs; children in school; the tax situation; and a 
reduction in compensation for some positions. He reported that another session may be 
scheduled next month.  
 Kilbride reported that SeaPort Airlines had 120 passengers from Newport last week 
and Astoria had 30 passengers. He noted that the subsidy is down $55,000 from the 
revenue guarantee, and those numbers will not improve in September when the subsidy 
decreases. He questioned the sustainability of the service, noting the disparity between 
ticket revenues and the subsidy. He noted that there were approximately 3.5 
passengers per Newport flight last week. 
 Bertuleit reported on a recent meeting of the Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee. He 
stated that the Oceanview trail grant was submitted, and that he hoped the open grant 
with the state will not hinder the Oceanview trail grant. He noted that the city received a 
grant for the South Beach Community Trail. He added that trails are being developed 
that will connect the Wilder pocket park to Mike Miller Park. 

Bertuleit reported that 35 – 40 plein air painters will be in the area for two weeks. He 
reviewed some of the group’s planned activities. 
 Patrick reported on a recent meeting of the Airline Sustainability Task Force at which 
the Mead and Hunt Study was discussed. The ASTF agreed that SeaPort should make 
a marketing and sustainability presentation to the group, the Air Service Consortium, 
and City Council. A discussion ensued regarding marketing information that is 
distributed to all three groups. Bertuleit noted that Astoria is dragging the service down. 
At the ASTF meeting, Cossey reviewed the interline agreement that SeaPort obtained 
with US Airways.  

Patrick reported that the Port of Newport will present an update on the international 
terminal project, tomorrow, at 6:00 P.M., at the Yaquina Bay Yacht Club. 
 McConnell reported that he attended a recent OCCA board meeting. He noted that 
the Jazz Festival will be held during the first weekend of October, and that Lincoln 
County residents will be offered a considerable discount.  
 Brusselback reported that he attended the Writers on the Edge series on Saturday. 
 Obteshka reported that the senior center expansion will begin next week. He noted 
that activities will continue upstairs while the lower level is renovated. He noted that at a 
recent meeting of the Senior Center Advisory Committee, a pilot program for financial 
assistance/subsidy for senior field trips was discussed. He reported that the senior 
center continues to provide fitness, hearing, sight, and blood pressure testing for 
patrons. He stated that the senior center has produced a cookbook as a fundraiser. He 
asked that the cookbook be listed on the city website. 
 Obteshka reported that the Library’s summer reading program will be held in Literacy 
Park and will feature Elton Chung with Tales of the Sea. 

Obteshka reported that Friday’s Oregonian had an article on the Wilder development 
that focused on sustainable housing and playground equipment. 



 Bain reported that Council had received an invitation to participate in the upcoming 
Nesika Illahee Pow Wow activities, during August. 
 Obteshka reported that a stakeholders meeting on improvements to Hatfield Marine 
Science Drive, would be held on Thursday, July 22, from 10:30 A.M. – Noon. Tokos will 
facilitate the meeting. Tokos reported that a full open house would be held in August 
and September. 
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Voetberg reported that a request from Bill Hall, to participate 
in the Lincoln Community Land Trust, was included in the packet. He noted that the 
request was initially made to the Budget Committee and then referred to the City 
Council. He stated that there is $3,000 in miscellaneous City Council expenses that 
could be used for this membership. He asked for direction from Council. A discussion 
ensued regarding this and other non-profits. It was the consensus of Council to develop 
a policy regarding nonprofit contributions prior to the upcoming budget year. 
 Voetberg reported on the recent meeting of the Destination Newport Committee at 
which a discussion ensued regarding promoting three or four should season events 
annually. It was the consensus of the DNC that the advertising agency revise the plan to 
promote many different shoulder season activities. He noted that the DNC plans to 
attend the August 2, 2010 City Council meeting to introduce themselves and answer 
questions. 
 Voetberg reported that he talked with the AFSCME bargaining unit, and the group 
agreed to a one year pay freeze. He thanked AFSCME for this concession. He added 
that an AFSCME position has been vacated and will not be filled. 
 Voetberg congratulated the Volunteer Fire Department on a successful pancake 
breakfast. He read a list of the businesses that donated supplies or labor for this event. 
 Voetberg reported the 2009-10 IT office accomplishments are included in the packet. 
He recognized Richard Dutton for his work with the city. 
 Voetberg reported that Ritzman was successful in locating equipment that is capable 
of correctly identifying where the underwater untreated sewer main is located. He 
congratulated Ritzman on this accomplishment. 
 Voetberg reported that a joint City Council/Planning Commission work session is 
scheduled for August 9, 2010, at 6:00 P.M., to discuss the geologic hazard ordinance. 
 Voetberg reported that SeaPort’s marketing staff will attend the August 4, 2010 
Airline Sustainability Task Force Meeting, to update the group on marketing efforts. He 
stated that Rob McKinney is willing to attend an upcoming City Council meeting. It was 
suggested that the ASTF and Airline Service Consortium be invited to attend this 
meeting.  
 Voetberg reported that Tokos is working on the Agate Beach parking issue. Tokos 
updated Council on his efforts to solve the parking dilemma in this area. 
 Voetberg reported that the Parks and Recreation Department is planning a Celtic 
Festival next June. He reported that the city has been notified of a grant award for the 
South Beach Community Trail. It was noted that there is a $30,000 match, and while 
nothing is budgeted, there is $120,000 in Parks SDC’s, and an additional $10,000 in the 
TRT fund for trail development. He reported that part of the $120,000 may be used in 



the development of Coast Park, but the match monies should be available by the time 
the trail development begins.  
 Patrick asked about the next meeting date that the room tax/business license group 
will be meeting. Voetberg will send a reminder note to the participants. 
 Voetberg reported that the June financial report will be delayed. 
 McConnell asked that the DNC notes from the June meeting be provided to Council 
prior to the meeting with the DNC at the August 2 work session. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Award of sewer extension bid – NE 56th Street LID. Ritzman reported that an LID was 
formed for four properties on NE 56th Street, and the property owners wanted to install 
the sewer line prior to paving the street. Ritzman reviewed the bidding process. He 
explained that the issue before Council is the consideration of a notice of award to W.W. 
Construction for the rebid of the NE 56th Street sewer LID project, Project No. 4-2009. 
He reported that the staff recommendation is to approve the issue of the notice of 
award. MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by Obteshka, to issue the notice of 
award for the NE 56th Street Sewer Project to W.W. Construction, for this project that 
was recently rebid. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Resolution No. 3519 placing a question for a general obligation bond for a new 
swimming pool on the November 2010 ballot. It was reported that staff has been 
working on conceptual drawings, cost estimates, and a ballot question related to a new 
swimming pool. Voetberg reported that Exhibit B has been revised to clarify that the 
estimated cost is $6.6 million, which is equal to $ .43 of assessed value, and on a 
$200,000 house, it would amount to $86 annually. Patrick reported that she received an 
e-mail from Janet Johnson who expressed concern with the amount of time allowed for 
comment. She noted that many community members were unaware of the issue. Patrick 
recused herself because she owns property across the street. Bertuleit stated that he 
was a board member of the Friends of the Oregon Coast Aquatic Center, and that he 
might have a question, but would not be voting on this issue. Protiva stated that he has 
participated on a radio show; made presentations to the Chamber of Commerce and 
Boosters Club; displayed the information in the lobby of the rec center; and placed 
information at the swimming pool. He stated that he has received comments regarding 
the plan. He noted that the conceptual design locates the pool next to the rec center, 
and that it is a municipal swimming pool as opposed to an aquatic park. He noted that it 
would have a lap pool and warm water pool. He stated that he anticipates lots of future 
input. He reported that because the pool and rec center could use the same locker 
rooms, control desk, and parking, that some economies of scale would be recognized, 
and he thinks this is the most cost effective way to upgrade the pool. He added that this 
design might allow for future expansion opportunities. He added that the input he has 
received favors an eight-lane pool. He stated that the operating costs are unknown, but 
that he believes that a certain synergy will be created with the addition of the pool at the 
rec center. He stated that no additional staff should be necessary to operate facility. A 
discussion ensued regarding lane size of the pool, and what would occur if the costs are 
higher than the bond proceeds. Protiva stated that the city will not build more than it can 
afford. He added that contingencies and additional monies have been included so that 



the estimate is realistic. Kilbride stated that he believes the measure will be difficult to 
sell to the community, and that the swimmers are going to have to sell the project. A 
discussion ensued regarding the formation of a task force to promote the measure. 
Protiva noted that city staff cannot and will not promote, sell, or be overly enthusiastic 
about the measure pursuant to Oregon statute. Bain read a letter that each Councilor 
received from Bill Barton in support of the project. Several Councilors stated that they 
had received e-mails supporting the project. Bertuleit asked about parking. Protiva noted 
that the matter had been examined. He noted that parking is at a premium at major 
events, and described some possible solutions to mitigate some of the parking issues.  
Voetberg noted that funding for parking is included in the revised estimate. Bertuleit 
asked how much it would cost to move the force main for expansion. Protiva stated that 
the Public Works Department conducted locates and determined that it could be moved, 
but did not provide an estimate for this work. He noted that it could be in the hundreds of 
thousands of dollars. Obteshka suggested providing a notification on the utility bills that 
the matter will be on the November ballot, and referring folks to the city website. Further 
discussion ensued regarding disseminating information regarding the ballot issue. A 
discussion ensued regarding traffic patterns and safe routes to drop off and pick up rec 
center users.  

Katherine Pederson, president of the Friends of the Oregon Coast Aquatic Center, 
expressed concerns with the plan, including: inadequate parking; inadequate public 
comment period; lack of a disposition plan for the current pool; lack of a business plan 
for operations; lack of room for expansion; lack of interest in a swimming pool as 
opposed to an aquatic park; and the lack of construction funding in the bond as 
proposed. Brusselback asked whether the FOCAC group had received a request to 
participate in the pool development process. Pederson stated that the FOCAC did not 
receive a request to participate in the development process. A brief discussion ensued, 
and Protiva stated that FOCAC had been invited and encouraged to participate in the 
pool development process. MOTION was made by Kilbride, seconded by McConnell, to 
adopt Resolution No. 3519, “A Resolution Calling for an Election on the Issuance of 
General Obligation Bonds to Provide for a New Municipal Swimming Pool and Adopting 
a Ballot Title and Explanatory Statement.” Kilbride and McConnell agreed to include the 
revised Exhibit B as distributed this evening, as a part of Resolution No. 3519. The 
motion carried in a voice vote with Bertuleit abstaining and Patrick recused.  
 
 Resolution No.3520 amending the penalty for late payment of utility bills. Voetberg 
reported that the issue before Council is the consideration of an amendment to 
Resolution No. 3516 that set water rates. He added that, at Council direction, this 
resolution revises the penalty for late payment, and would be consistent with the 
practice of the Finance Department. He reviewed the assessment of fees which was a 
part of a hand-out distributed at the work session.  Obteshka reported that he had 
researched other utility late fees, and that this one is inconsistent with other utilities. He 
recommended the penalty be $5. Kay Keady, a Finance Department employee, 
discussed the distinction between the late fee and the letter fee. Voetberg stated that 
only one fee is assessed when the water shut-off letter is sent. Marshall reported that 
the city is charging a greater fee than most coastal cities of a comparable size. MOTION 
was made by Obteshka, seconded by Brusselback to reduce the $17 delinquency fee to 
$5, and to defer to staff to handle administrative issues. The motion carried unanimously 



in a voice vote. MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by Brusselback, to adopt 
Resolution No. 3520, “A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 3516 Relating to Setting 
Rates for Water Utility Charges, Fees, Deposits, and Penalties.” Voetberg asked 
Council to clarify that Attachment A to the resolution is the version that was distributed 
at the work session, but reflective of the $5 fee. The motion maker and second agreed 
to the clarification. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Ordinance No. 2006 amending Chapter 3.05.050C of the Newport Municipal Code 
relating to transient room tax exemptions. Voetberg reported that staff has been working 
with group on the business license and transient room tax ordinances, and one section 
of the transient room tax ordinance needed immediate attention, as that section of code 
is ambiguous and incorrectly interpreted. He reported that the complete overhaul will 
come before Council in the future. MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by 
Bertuleit, to read Ordinance No. 2006, amending Chapter 3.05.050 of the Newport 
Municipal Code regarding transient room taxes, by title only, and place for final passage. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. Voetberg read the title of Ordinance 
No. 2006. Voting aye on the adoption of Ordinance No. 2006 were Patrick, Bertuleit, 
Obteshka, Brusselback, Bertuleit, Kilbride, and Bain. 

 
ADJOJRNMENT 

 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:02 P.M. 
 
 
_____________________________________  _____________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder     William D. Bain, Mayor 


